ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 6, 2003
8:01 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 5

"An Act prohibiting discrimnation by credit rating or credit
scoring in insurance rates; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 92
"An Act relating to reports by nenbers of the clergy and
custodians of clerical records who have reasonable cause to
suspect that a child has suffered harm as a result of child
abuse or neglect.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 18
"An Act relating to the liability of parents and |egal guardi ans
of m nors who destroy property.™

- MOVED CSHB 18( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, PUBLIC FACILITIES
PORTI ON

- HEARD [ See 10:15 a.m mnutes for this date]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2003



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 5
SHORT TI TLE: | NSURANCE DI SCRI M NATI ON BY CREDI T RATI NG
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) CRAWFORD

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0031 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0031 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0031 (H STA, L&C

01/ 21/ 03 0031 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 06/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 92

SHORT TI TLE: CLERGY TO REPORT CHI LD ABUSE
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) LYNN

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H STA, HES

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 19/ 03 0257 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA

03/ 06/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 18

SHORT TI TLE: PARENTAL LI ABI LI TY FOR CHI LD S DAMAGE
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) MEYER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)
01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H STA, JUD
02/ 07/ 03 0153 (H COSPONSOR('S): ANDERSON
02/ 20/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
02/ 20/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
03/ 06/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 5.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2003



CYNTHI A LAMB FAUST, Safe Church Program Consul t ant

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a representative for the Right
Reverend WMark MacDonal d, bishop of the Episcopal D ocese of
Al aska, during testinony of HB 92.

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Adm ni strat or
Division of Famly & Youth Services
Departnent of Health & Social Services
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 92.

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyi st

for the Al aska Catholic Conference (ACQO

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 92.

TERESA W LLI AMS, Presi dent

Pissed Of Parents (POP)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 92.

WM THOVAS MOFFATT, Rev., Staff

to Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on HB 92 on behal f of
Representative Lynn, sponsor.

Rl CHARD BLOCK, Representational Lobbyi st

for Christian Science Conmttee on Publication in Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 92.

FLOYD V. SM TH

Al aska District Council of the Assenblies of CGod

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 92, testified about
confidential communications, imunity, and insurance problens
for churches.

TED BOATSMAN, District Superintendent

Al aska District Council of the Assenblies of God
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 92, testified
regarding its possible effects on proving the intent of
confidential comrunication,.

KENT REDFEARN
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 92.

LAUREE HUGONI N

Al aska Network on Donestic Violence & Sexual Assault (ANDVSA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 92.

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 18.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-16, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seat on, Lynn, Guenberg, and Wyhrauch were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Dahlstrom and Berkowitz arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 5-1 NSURANCE DI SCRI M NATI ON BY CREDI T RATI NG

Number 0040

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 5, "An Act prohibiting discrimnation by credit
rating or credit scoring in insurance rates; and providing for
an effective date.™

[ Chair Weyhrauch asked potential testifiers to be available to
testify at the next planned hearing, March 29, 2003.]

Nunmber 0264
REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 5, told the commttee the process of working on the

proposed |egislation began about a year ago after receiving
conplaints from constituents about increased hone and auto

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2003



i nsurance rates because of bad credit scores; nost people want
to know what their credit has to do with setting their insurance
rat es. He said that as he has gone through the process [of
working on HB 5], he has decided that credit scoring really has
no place in setting insurance rates.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH observed that [HB 5] is broader than HB 47
because it would prohibit scoring for business and personal
lines of credit.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD affirned that. He explained that he
wanted to coordinate with nenbers of the Senate and is open to
suggestion and nodification, if he can be shown a justification
for using credit scoring. He noted that M. Lessneier [|obbyist
for] State Farm Insurance Conpany, spent a lot of tinme the
previous year working with himto illustrate what he felt was
wort hwhil e regarding credit scoring.

Nunmber 0476

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH requested enpirical facts showng that [a
consuner's] credit was used to set an insurance rate, the
consuner's conplaint to the Division of Insurance, and how the
Di vision of |Insurance addressed the conpl aint.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD responded that he could provide lots of
anecdotes, but doesn't know how the Division of Insurance has
dealt with [incidents] or whether those have been corrected at
all. He noted that over the past couple of years there have
been no bans or limtations on the use of credit scoring. He
told the commttee about a phone call [received by his staff]
within the past week from a 70-year-old man wth human
i mmunodeficiency virus (H'V) who is no longer able to pay his
medical bills; because of that, his credit score is alnost
nonexi stent now, and although the man has never had an acci dent,
his insurance rates have al nost tripled.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said the insurance industry was banned
fromusing "red lining" in disadvantaged econonmc districts. He
mentioned studies, including one by the D vision of Insurance,
which show that credit scoring hurts people in disadvantaged
nei ghbor hoods nore than in wealthy nei ghborhoods. For exanpl e,
a man with two [convictions for driving while intoxicated (DW)]
was given a lower insurance rate because of stellar credit,
while sone people wth great driving records have a change of
econom ¢ situation - because of divorce, for exanple - and find
their insurance rates skyrocketing. He cited an exanple of a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2003



man who was laid off from a conpany that didn't allow people
with low credit scores to work there because "sonebody's selling
this as a predictor of theft." He also recalled hearing that
Delta Airlines will start color-coding passengers as posing a
terroristic threat based in part on their credit scores; he said
he can't imagine what wuse that has as a predictor of a
terrorist.

Nunmber 0876

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted that the bill only addresses credit scores
as a function of insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD agreed but said, "It's a slippery slope

that's being sold as a predictor for all sorts of things." He
explained that elements which go into a credit score are
proprietary - secret - and not revealed to the D vision of

| nsurance, which would be required to disclose sone of that
information if it were in the public realm He listed what he'd
been told are the five conponents [of a credit score], which are
kept secret: 35 percent paynent history, 30 percent outstanding
debt, 15 percent length of credit history, 10 percent recent new
applications or opened accounts, and 10 percent a mx of credit
and types of accounts and | oans.

Nunber 1022

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced his intention to carefully review the
report fromthe Division of Insurance before the next hearing.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD offered his belief that the basic
prem se of that report is that "they say we can't prove that
credit scores don't have «correlation with the setting of
i nsurance rates." He added, however, that it can't be proven
that they do [correlate]. Referring to exanples of past studies
showing that people with a certain color of hair or certain
zodiac sign were better or worse drivers, for exanple, he said,
"W never would use those things as a basis to set insurance
rates, and | think that credit scores have just about as nuch
efficacy as what sign you were born under."”

Nunber 1147
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD told the <conmittee about a letter
received from Washington, D.C. He said proponents of credit

scoring claim that if passed, HB 5 [may] be preenpted by the
federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). Addressing the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2003



purpose and intent of FCRA and why he believes the preenption
argunent is invalid, he told nenbers:

First, it's inportant to keep our terns straight.
Proponents of credit scores, particularly those who
are claimng preenption of the FCRA, frequently use
"consuner reports” and "consuner information" because
those are the terns used in the FCRA. The appropriate
term however, in the context of this argunent, 1is
"credit score."

Credit scores are not consuner information, as
contenpl ated under the FCRA They are a conputation
based on consuner information. ... In short, the
purpose of the FCRA was to level the playing field
bet ween consuners and | enders. Consuners were to be
allowed to see the sane information used by I|enders
and underwiters, in a clear and understandable
fashion. ... And the wuse of <credit history was
regulated to ensure it was accurate and fair to the
consuner.

The nost basic problemw th credit scores, in terns of
the FCRA, is that they are the result of a secret
met hodol ogy. The information used is secret, the
wei ght given to that information is secret, and the
formulas used to <conpute those scores from the
information [are] secret. As a result, the playing
field is no longer level, and the consumer protection
af forded under the FCRA has been corrupted. The FCRA
was basically a federal floor on |egislation.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked about any judicial cases on [possible
preenption in other states].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD answered that he doesn't think there
have been any challenges so far. In response to a follow up
gquestion, he said he believed the original Act was passed in
1970 and has been nodified a few timnes. He said he thinks the
last tinme it was updated was in either 1996 or 1998, and the
credit score was never contenplated and never nentioned until
the very last nodification, which he thought was in 1998. He
added, "But it doesn't say that the use of credit scores is
either prohibited or that it should be used.™

Nunber 1525

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he woul d appreci ate Representative
Crawford's presence at the Mrch 29 neeting. He also asked
soneone from the Division of Insurance to address at the next
hearing the question of whether a sinpler way to deal wth this
mght be to enact a fair credit reporting Act in Alaska and
extend it to insurance, as "insurance consuners' right-to-know
| egi sl ation.” He opined that the real question is a matter of
di sclosure. [HB 5 was hel d over.]

HB 92- CLERGY TO REPCORT CHI LD ABUSE

Number 1600

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 92, "An Act relating to reports by nenbers of the
clergy and custodians of clerical records who have reasonable
cause to suspect that a child has suffered harm as a result of
child abuse or neglect.” [In packets was a proposed committee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS025\D, Lauterbach, 3/5/03.]

Nunmber 1650

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, sponsor of HB 92, remarked, "This 1is
Anerica and no one is above the law, but first there needs to be
alaw " He told nenbers:

One only has to read national headlines to conclude
it'"s long past tine to nandate reporting by clergy of
act ual or suspected sexual abuse of chil dren.
Doctors, nurses, and teachers already are required to
report. Alaska's children and Alaska's faith
comunities are Alaska's nobst inportant and val uable
resources and resources nost worthy of projection.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his belief that HB 92 is good for
children, "all of our churches,” and Alaska. He said his intent
is not to cast stones at any particular church, individual, or
group of individuals. He pointed out that he'd asked for this
to be drafted while still a Representative-elect, before the
publicity involving Archbishop Hurley's honorable apology [for
failure to help a teenage parishioner who reported sexual

abuse]. Representative Lynn noted that he is a practicing Roman
Catholic, but was testifying strictly as a |ayperson and
| egi sl at or. He said, thankfully, there has been no personal

i nvol venent of his famly or himwth any of the situations that
pronmpted himto introduce HB 92.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2003



Nunber 1817
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN conti nued as foll ows:

Headlines don't tell the entire story. No church has
a nmonopoly on sinners, whether they be clergy or
nonclergy. And no church has a shortage of people who
will find inaction nore convenient than action. It's
neither fair nor accurate to conclude from newspaper
headl i nes that sexual abuse, or failure to report
abuse, is territory limted to one church. The church
organized wth a hierarchy of «clergy, as in the
Catholic Church and several other churches, my
actually have an easier reporting situation than
churches in which clergy report only to their own
congregation, where there's not one boss and no single
keeper of personnel records.

The point is that however a church is organized, the
appalling failure of any clergy nmenber to voluntarily
report abuse should not becone an excuse for bashing

anyone's church. The surreptitiousness acconpanying
the sexual mstreatnent of children and the failure to
report abuse has no denom national boundari es. HB 92

is intended to protect our children and strengthen the
entire spectrum of our faith communities in doing what
common sense tells us needs to be done. Al 50 states
have sonme form of mandated reporting of sexual abuse
of children, and many include <clergy anong the
mandat ed reporters.

Nunmber 1893
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN conti nued:

HB 92 does, in fact, provide a reporting exception for

the thing we call "penitenti al communi cation, "
commonly known as "confession.” The nature of the
rite of confession, in nmy faith famly, we term as a
sacranent . It's not generally well understood outside
the churches that practice it. It's understandabl e
that some nay believe exclusion of mandatory reporting
of confession [in] HB 92 is, quote, "unfair to

churches that don't practice a fornal rite of
confession."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 6, 2003



The only thing | can say is, this hearing and this
bill are not the place to debate the theology of
confession, or any other church doctrine of practice.
It may also not be commonly known that the rite of

confession is not Ilimted to the Roman Catholic
Chur ch. O her churches have simlar special rites of
confession, including Episcopalians and the various

Ot hodox churches, such as Geek Othodox, Russian
Ot hodox, and Ort hodox Church of Anerica.

Some wel | -meaning person is sure to ask: "What's nore
inportant, reporting child abuse, or protecting the
seal of confession?" And, frankly, the answer to that
is above ny pay grade. | suppose God would have to
answer that. The reality is, however, the absolute
protection of the seal of confession goes back to
bi bli cal days, and priests of have suffered execution
rat her than reveal a confession.

According to the Catholic encyclopedia, sins revealed
in a sacranental confession bind the priest in viable
secrecy. Under this obligation, the priest cannot be
excused, either to save his own life or good nane, to
save the life of another, or to further the ains of
human justice, or to avert any public calamty. No
| aw can conmpel him to divulge the sins confessed to
him Wth this in mnd, we can see that no state |aw
is going to trunp that ..., even though sone states
have, in fact, seen fit to have this unenforceable |aw
in their statute book.

Nunber 1999

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN surm sed that HB 92 woul d probably enconpass
95 to 98 percent of the abusers who should be reported. He
opi ned, "Something is better than nothing." He said a case

could also be nade that everyone should be nandated to report
sexual abuse, and noted that some states have such a |aw. He
suggested at sonme point that perhaps the legislature should
visit that option, but said now is the tinme to put clergy on a
mandat ed reporting list.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN told the comittee a 10-year | ook-back
provi sion has been added to [the proposed CS], which states that

past suspected sexual abuse shall be reported. He added that
abuse suspected nore than 10 years ago, nmay - enphasis on the
word "may" - be reported. He said, "These sections apply even

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 6, 2003



if the victim has already obtained the age of mgjority."
Failure to report, as required, would be a class B m sdeneanor
He added, "This brings HB 92 into alignnent w th |anguage that
currently exists for currently mandated reporters.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that not every allegation of abuse is

valid and said, "Properly reported, an allegation can be
investigated and, if necessary, guilt or innocence determ ned by
a court of law, ... there can be no due process of |aw, however,
without a law." H ghlighted a broad range of support evidenced

by letters in the comittee packet, he concluded by saying
nobody of any age or situation should suffer sexual abuse, and
that type of abuse should be reported. Thus HB 92 sinply asks
clergy, who treat the health of the soul, to be added to the
current list of mandated reporters - a list that already
i ncludes doctors, nurses, and teachers, for exanple. This is
not a panacea, but a practical step in the right direction.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH tol d Representative Lynn that he appreciates the
homewor Kk he has done regarding HB 92 and the support that he's
gai ned for the proposed bill

Nunber 2232

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 92, Version 23-LS025\D, Lauterbach,
3/5/03, as a work draft.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to page 1, line 8. He asked if the
essence of the bill is to report child abuse.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d yes.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that clergy report the abuse of any
person [regardless of the victims age]. He noted that his own
father had suffered abuse at the hands of a worker in a |ong-
termcare facility.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said he would be happy to expand [the
| anguage] to include anyone under those circunstances.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, noting that he is a Presbyterian, gave an
exanple of a Presbyterian mnister being under |egal obligation
to report abuse and, therefore, telling sonmeone to confess
instead to a Catholic priest. He asked, "If a confession of
abuse conmes out in a Catholic confessional, is it not subject to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2003



reporting, but if it cones out with a Presbyterian mnister, is
it subject to ... reporting?"

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN of fered his understanding that the answer is
yes; it creates a difficult situation. He said he didn't know
the answer to the aforenentioned exanple; he didn't know whet her
a non-Catholic could actually go get a confession [from Catholic
clergy]. He reminded the commttee that the object is to
protect children and perhaps everybody who has suffered abuse at
the hands of "a church nenber, or by anybody else.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted several people on a list to testify.
He said he'd prefer that questions regardi ng denom nations other
than his own be addressed by clergy of other denom nations.

Nunmber 2558

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH returned attention to the notion to adopt
Version D as a work draft. He announced that w thout objection
Version D was before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 1, line 9, and the title.
He sought clarification as to whether the intent of the proposed
|l egislation is to require that all clergy report, to the |egal
authorities, all cases in which there is perceived neglect, as
wel | as abuse.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered in the affirmative.
Nunmber 2648

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ referred to Chair Wyhrauch's question
regarding different reporting requirenents for different faiths.
He clarified that his <concern is wth having different
treatnments of different religions in the statutes.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH suggested it's a matter of separation of church
and state and how each [denom nation] defines its own practice.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ surm sed, "Denom nati onal choi ce,
t hen. "

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN replied, "To the best of ny know edge,
there's nothing in the statute that defines responsibility of
one faith community conpared to another one." He said he has
been advised that the neglect portion is already covered under
other "currently mandated reporters.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2003



Nunber 2737

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ said in the rules of court there is
priest-penitent privilege that can be asserted in trials. He
asked how HB 92 woul d intersect with that court rule.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his belief that nothing in HB 92

would interfere with that. He said the state cannot force the
seal of confession to be broken, but added, "If it's already in
the bill in sonme other fashion - not necessarily in the nane of

confession - (indisc.) reconciliation or the right of penance, |
suppose that that would work, would it not?"

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he thinks Representative Berkowitz was
tal king about a rule of evidence, but said he is not sure how
this anendnent to the statute would be incorporated into that.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM expressed appreciation for HB 92 as a great
step. He referred to previous coments by Representative Seaton
and noted that "neglect"” isn't defined in the bill. He said he
wanted to see if it's defined in state law as referenced in
AS 47.17. 290.

Nunmber 2843

REPRESENTATI VE BERKONTZ referred to AS 47.17.290(10), which
r eads:

(10) "neglect"” nmeans the failure by a person
responsible for the child's welfare to provide
necessary food, care, clothing, shelter, or nedical
attention for a child;

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if that is the sanme statute that
applies to teachers, for exanple.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "In ternms of neglect it would be defined,
because teachers and staff are included already under the
existing statute.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said the definitions in Title 47.17
woul d apply to "the prohibited acts, or the required acts."”

Nunber 2894

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants to make sure the bill's
intent is to require clergy to report class B m sdeneanor
violations, just as those in counseling are required to do
currently.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN replied that the intent of the drafters of
HB 92 was to bring the requirenent for clergy reporting in line
with reporting already required for other classes or persons so
that there wouldn't be a dichotony between what clergy have to
do and what doctors and nurses have to do, for exanple.

TAPE 03-16, SIDE B
Number 2999

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the requirenent [to go back 10
years in the records] is a requirement for "all the other
agencies" or is specific to clergy.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he didn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ referred to Section 3, which read in
part, "recogni zed religious denomi nati on or religious
organi zation." He asked, "Recognized by whonf"

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN surm sed that it would be denom nations or
religious organizations recognized by the federal governnent for
t ax- exenpti on purposes.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH opened the hearing to public testinony.
Number 2918

CYNTHI A LAMB FAUST, Safe Church Program Consultant, representing
the Right Reverend WMark MacDonald, bishop of the Episcopa
D ocese of Alaska, testified as follows:

For over 10 years the Episcopal Church in the U S A
has required that every diocese develop and inplenent
a program to prevent sexual m sconduct on the part of
clergy and church |eaders. In our diocese here in
Al aska, part of our Safe Church Program includes an 8-
hour training for clergy and laity, and deals directly
w th sexual abuse of children, elders, disabled, and
t hose who are not legally conpetent to give consent.

M5. FAUST read from part of the manual used by the Safe Church
Program as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2003



Sexual m sconduct is nore about the msuse of power
than it is about sex. In relationships of trust with
children or adults, church |eaders nust use great care
to avoid taking advantage of or abusing their power so
they do not betray God's image in thenselves and
others by becomng reckless bullies. It is the
responsibility of every church |eader to keep a clear
boundary between conduct that is trustworthy and
m sconduct . Keeping this high standard is always the
responsibility of the mnister or |eader.

Sexual abuse is sexual involvenent or contact by a
person with a mnor, an elder, a disabled person, or
soneone who may not [be] legally conpetent to give
consent . Abuse of power, especially, hurts children
and those too weak to defend thenselves. Children are
not able to give consent to sexual activity because
they don't and can't understand everything involved in

what they are being asked to do and what it wll
do to them Therefore, even if they "go along” wth
what the older and nore powerful abuser wants,
children cannot be considered <capable of true
"consent . "

The Gospel shows Jesus always takes the side of
children and the weak against those who msuse their

power to hurt others. The church forbids this
behavior. It is a crimnal offense, to be reported to
| aw enforcenent officials. If you suspect or are

aware that a child, elder, or disabled person is being
abused and it is wthin your ability, seek to protect
them from further harm Contact the nearest office of
the Division of Famly and Youth Services and/or the
Al aska State Troopers or police and report it. If the
abuser is a church |eader, notify the bishop
i mredi atel y.

Number 2724

[A portion of Ms. Faust's testinony was indiscernible because of
technical difficulties.]

M5. FAUST told the commttee Bishop MacDonald heartily agrees

with a need for reporting and has agreed to support HB 92. She
conti nued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2003



| can also say that, in our training, we talk about
the confessional seal. W do let priests know ..., if
they suspect that sonmeone is comng to them to
confess, that they also warn people that we do
[report]. And if the person does choose to use the
confessional as a way to unburden thenselves, the
pri est always has the opportunity to wthhold
absol ution until the person does confess.

So, while I amnot in a position to speak to all of
the intricacies of that, | did want to say that that
is part of program to discuss this with clergy and to
make the ... people in the congregations aware that
reporting is sonething that we strongly encourage all
of our clergy to do already.

Number 2680

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said M. Faust's testinony seened to
revol ve around sexual abuse or m sconduct, especially [by] those
who are in power. He asked whether M. Faust's testinony
concerns the requirenent that any nenber of the clergy would,
under this law, be required to report neglect.

M5. FAUST answered that she appreciates the distinction, but
Bi shop MacDonald hadn't instructed her to speak to that. She
said her sense is that she is testifying on the bishop's behalf
to support the reporting of sexual abuse.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Faust to check wth Bishop
MacDonal d to find out the position on requiring clergy to report
any cases of neglect that conme to their know edge from the
congregati on.

Nunber 2582

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Adm nistrator, Division of Famly &
Yout h Services, Departnment of Health & Social Services (DHSS),
told the commttee DHSS supports HB 92. She noted that
approximately 13 states currently include nenbers of the clergy
anong those specifically mandated to report known or suspected
child abuse or neglect. In 18 additional states, any person who
suspects child abuse or neglect is required to report. She
clarified that the <clergy would be included wthin the
definition of "any person.” QO her states are currently
considering simlar Ilegislation, she said. She concl uded that
the departnent hasn't had a chance to |look at the proposed CS,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 6, 2003



but believes it would be of benefit regarding the protection of
children. In response to a request by Representative G uenberg,
she said she'd provide a copy of other states' statutes in the
next day or two.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned organizations such as the
Society of Friends [the Quakers] who don't have ordai ned priests
and mnisters. He asked how t hose are handl ed.

MS5. G BBENS answered that she doesn't know. She surm sed that
it would be a | egal question.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for any information she could
find "in her network of other administrators.” Referring to the
| ook-back provision in Section 4, he asked if M. G bbens was
aware of any other states with anything |like that.

Nunber 2454

M5. G BBENS said not at present, but she hadn't had tine to
review and analyze [Version D] before the neeting. She said
she'd be happy to look into it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. G bbens was aware of
simlar | ook-back provisions el sewhere in Al aska | aw.

MS. G BBENS answered, "Not that |'m aware of."
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "Neither aml."
Number 2394

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyist for Al aska Catholic Conference (ACO),
explained that the ACC is conposed of the three Roman Catholic
bi shops in Alaska and is the vehicle they use to speak with one
voice on public policy matters. He announced that he woul d hand
out a brochure at the conclusion of his testinony. Not i ng that
ACC net twice the prior week, he said HB 92 was on the agenda
and was endorsed unaninmously, is consistent with the church's
policy, and is good for the children and the churches of Al aska.

MR. WAGONER referred to anendnents in [Version D], saying ACC
hadn't taken a position on the proposed CS. He said two are
housekeepi ng anendnents, but one nmakes the permssive past-
reporting requirenent nmandatory, going back 10 vyears; he
expressed ACC s need for discussion on this provision. He said
if the bill is nerely directing churches to report allegations

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2003



of past sexual abuse or suspected allegations of sexual abuse of
a mnor by a clergy nenber within the last 10 years, that would
be one thing; that information would be in the records of the
chur ch. However, the bill goes nuch further than that,
requiring all clergy nenbers to report all past allegations of
sexual abuse, or suspected sexual abuse, that the clergy nenber
had know edge of or suspected.

MR. WAGONER suggested that the latter requirenent would nmean the

bill is not so nmuch directed towards the clergy as towards the
pari shioners of the clergy nenber. He suggested that nenbers
keep this distinction in mnd while debating HB 92. He

expl ained, "The first one is nmuch easier for the churches to
conply with, because of the record keeping and [because] we're
| ooking at specific clergy nenbers.” He said to ask the clergy
to try to renmenber conversations or counseling sessions they had
over a 10-year period, without witten records, would be nuch
nore difficult to conply wth. He told the commttee that
whatever it decides, [the Catholic] Church will do its best to
neet the requirenments of the |law, however, he enphasized that
there are two very different requirenents being considered. He
added that it is a concern that a clergy nenber who "m sses
sonething” in the 10 years can be incrimnated for it.

Number 2191

MR. WAGONER referred to use of the word "priest” in statute and
said in [the Catholic] Church that would include the definition
for bishop. Noting that the bill provides for an exception for
reporting of penitential comunication, he pointed out that the
technical term [for confession] is "the sacranent of penance and
reconciliation.” M. Wagoner said only a bishop or priest,
through a bishop's authority, can give confessions. |It's a very
narrow exception and wouldn't include when soneone cane in to
talk to the priest about a famly problem and an all egation of
sexual abuse arose during the session, for exanple - it would
only be the sacranent of penance and reconciliation.

MR. WAGONER noted that sacranents are an essential conponent of
the church; [the sacranment of penance and reconciliation] is one
of the seven sacranments and has been around for 1,300 to 1,500
years. The church has a body of cannon law that regulates it.
Cannon Law 983 states that the sacranental seal is inviolable;
therefore, it is absolutely forbidden for a confessor - a priest
or bishop - to betray in any way a penitent, in words or in any
manner or for any reason.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2003



Nunber 2042

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ referred to M. Wagoner's definition of
clergy nenbers. He asked if a nun, for exanple, would be a
cl ergy menber under [the bill].

MR, WAGONER answered no. He said he interpreted the bill to
define "clergy nenber" as "priest, mnister, or rabbi of a
church". It wouldn't include Sunday school teachers or full-
time mnisters, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if nenbers of other faiths who
use different termnology for their religious |eaders would be
covered.

MR. WAGONER said he didn't know.
Nunmber 1955

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked if nuns and brothers, while not
consi dered clergy, would be considered "religious".

MR. WAGONER responded that "religious”" would include sisters;
the brothers would be ordained and are not wusually associated
with a diocese, but with an order. He added, "They would be
covered." In further response, he clarified that a brother who
is a priest could hear a confession.

Nunber 1900
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH referred to [page 2, lines 27-28], which reads:

(17) "clergy nmenber" neans a priest, mnister,
or rabbi of a church, tenple, or recognized religious
denom nation or religious organization.

He said many recogni zed religious denom nations don't have those
kinds of nanmes, for exanple, a reader in a Christian Science
chur ch. He suggested the question being asked is whether the
definition is enough to sweep in those in a religious context
who hear reports of abuse, or whether it should do so. He said
it is a fundanental policy question and he thinks the answer is
yes.

MR WAGONER reiterated his belief that the current bill would

cover priests and bishops, not volunteers who teach religious
education cl asses, for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2003



Number 1831

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Wagoner if he is confortable
supporting the position with regard to reporting potential cases
of neglect wthin the congregation.

MR. WAGONER asked, "The past or the present?”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the past is only for sexual abuse
but the title of the bill and the requirement is that clergy
will report any neglect, as well as abuse. He asked if that is
[ ACC s] understanding [of the bill] and if it supports that.

MR WAGONER said it wasn't discussed at the neeting, but he
can't imgine that the bishops would have a problem wth
reporting present or future issues of neglect; he said he' d have
to verify that with them

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he'd appreciate it if M. Wgoner did
that because he sees a stark difference between requiring the
clergy to report any suspected neglect of children within their
congregati on, versus sexual abuse, sexual m sconduct, or
physi cal abuse from nenbers of their organi zation. He said he
could see that the current definitions [in HB 92] could cause
probl ens in how congregations function.

Nunber 1666

TERESA WLLI AVS, President, Pissed Of Parents (POP), told the
commttee POP supports HB 92. Its position is that everyone
should be reporting. She said she hears a lot of concern

regarding neglect, and there are nore victins of neglect,
statew de and nationw de, than any other crime against children.
She posited that it is only fitting that those who adm nister to
"our spiritual selves" should also adm nister to children.

Number 1600

WM THOVAS MOFFATT, Rev., Staff to Representative Bob Lynn,
Al aska State Legislature, told the committee he is an Eastern
Orthodox Christian priest. He said the central purpose of HB 92
is torequire of clergy what is already required from"the eight
ot her categories" of professions. Father Thonas said he and the
bi shops with whom he has spoken appreciate Representative
Seaton's previously stated concern regarding the effect of
requiring neglectful situations involving <children to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2003



reported by clergy. He added, "No problem"™” He referred to
[ page 1, lines 6-10], which reads in part:

(a) The following persons who, in the
performance of their occupational duties, or wth
respect to (8) of this subsection, in the performnce
of their appointed duties, have reasonable cause to
suspect that a child has suffered harm as a result of
child abuse or neglect shall imediately report the
harmto the nearest office of the departnent:

FATHER THOVAS read "reasonabl e cause to suspect that a child has
suffered", placing enphasis on the word "has". He said the
whol e purpose of HB 92 is to protect children who are suffering
or being caused to suffer.

Nunmber 1415

FATHER THOVAS nentioned the definition of clergy. He said "we"
use three specific words: priest, mnister, or rabbi. He said
the word "mnister” in the bill is meant to cover "a whole raft
of titles of people,” including ayatollahs and Christian Science
practitioners - "those who have responsibility.” He said it was
the intent of [the sponsor] of HB 92 to "snare in the net" those
peopl e who have the title of priest, mnister, or rabbi. He
said he, Representative Lynn, and all the clergy with whom he
has spoken hope, as the bill noves, that "perfect doesn't get in

t he way of acconplishing good."

FATHER THOVAS suggested perhaps every citizen should have the
duty to report child abuse or neglect. He related his
understanding that the eight categories currently required to
report do so to the Departnent of Health & Social Services.
Referring to a previous question regardi ng whet her Quakers woul d
be included as clergy, he said, "They don't have clergy, so they

don't get included.” Bringing attention to Representative
Gruenberg's previous nention of the |ook-back provision, he
said, "Yes, perhaps this would be unique, but a lot of the
controversy in nost recent days is resolved around the past.”
He said the first part of the bill, hopefully, addresses the
present and the future, "but we do provide this |ook-back
provision.” In response to a question from Representative Holm
he noted that the eight categories are listed in the bill

[ begi nning on page 1, |line 11].

Nunber 1115

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM told Father Thomas that when he uses the
word "mnisters" it doesn't reflect religious |eaders. He
suggested "religious |eaders” mght be a nore appropriate
phr ase.

FATHER THOVAS expl ai ned that in the Episcopal Church, "mnister"
refers to a vicar or a rector, soneone in charge of a
congregati on. He said he thought the intention related to
| eadership, for exanple.

Number 0990

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said when he thinks of mnisters - religious
| eaders - he thinks of the barrio in Mexico and poor, indigent
peopl e, perhaps w thout a good education, who need help. He
asked how [the bill] would hel p people who need to be mnistered
to, if [the legislature] puts a requirenent on those who

mnister to them to nmake the definition between whether they're
good parents, [by deciding] whether they have enough noney and
education, or whether they even should be parents. He asked,
"When we make law that requires that there's a penalty if you do
not, as a mnister, nake those definitions, are we really doing
what we want to do here in this bill?" Sexual abuse is one
i ssue, but he said he has a problem with the neglect portion of
this bill.

FATHER THOVAS said the intent is to have the clergy treated the
same as those in the previously nentioned eight categories who
are required to report.

Nunber 0722

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG voi ced concern that the bill nay be
underinclusive in regard to those religious groups who don't
have "official people” and also overinclusive in the sense that
there may be a mnister without a parish.

FATHER THOMVAS responded that there are priests, for exanple, who
don't have a parish; he hinself is one, he would want to be
included [in the proposed requirenent], and he doesn't know

anyone who wouldn't. He said [the sponsor] attenpted to do sone
good by requiring that clergy be included in the requirenent.
He added, "If you want to include, for all eight or nine
categories, the requirenent for the reporting of spousal abuse
or the reporting of the elderly who are abused, ... go for it."
Number 0409

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 6, 2003



RI CHARD BLOCK, Representational Lobbyist for Christian Science
Commttee on Publication in Alaska, told the comrttee he
represents those people in the state who rely on prayer for
heal i ng and who choose to protect the ability to recognize the
i nportance of spirituality as a path to healing. M. Bl ock
i ndi cated although his organization doesn't have an official
position on HB 92 or object to its passage, it does recognize
the social issues and problens the legislature is dealing wth,
and that it my be necessary to inpose broader reporting
requirenents than currently exist in order to effectuate that
| evel of protection.

MR. BLOCK expressed concern that Sections 2 and 3 be preserved.
He opined that the primary and ultimate objective of the bill
shoul d be the healing of those who are abused and of the alleged
per petrators. He stated his belief that the ability of the
person abused, or even the perpetrator, to comunicate in a
confidential way with a spiritual leader is a vital first step
in that healing process.

MR. BLOCK referred to the change in Version D that renoves
"religious practitioner, or simlar functionary" from Section 3.
He said he is puzzled because he isn't sure what that does. He
indicated he'd like sone time to think about it and talk wth
the sponsor's staff. He suggested the result of Version D m ght
be to exenpt Christian Science practitioners. Referring to
previous testinony regarding the neaning of the "minister”, he
stated his belief that a mnister is soneone who is ordai ned by
hi s/ her church, or maybe even recognized in state |law as having
official capacity with a church; thus people in the Christian
Sci ence church, for exanple, who are not official clergy
woul dn't be included in [Version D

TAPE 03-17, SIDE A
Number 0001

FLOYD V. SMTH, testifying on behalf of the Alaska D strict
Council of the Assenblies of God ("Assenblies of God"), said he
woul d i ke to confine hi s testi nony to confidenti al
comuni cations, the question of inmunity, and "sonme very
significant insurance problens, which are raised for churches by
this particular bill - particularly the retroactive application
of a reporting requirenent.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 6, 2003



MR SMTH referred to the Alaska Rules of Evidence and the
related comentaries, which had been alluded to. He told
nmenber s:

W' ve been operating under those rules for many, many
years - | think, at least back [to] 1979 - predating
the adoption of the abuse and negl ect Act .
Specifically, what we're referring to here is Rule 506
of the Alaska Rules of Evidence, pronulgated by the
Al aska Suprene Court. And that rule provides that a
comuni cation is confidential if it's nade privately,
and not intended for further disclosure, except to
ot her persons present, in furtherance of the purpose
of the conmmuni cati on.

W've heard sone very articulate testinony this
norning in respect to the sacranental exenptions and
privileges that were attached to particular churches
t hat have a sacranental or confessional tradition.

The Al aska Suprene Court rule, | would suggest to you,
avoids the problem of having the |egislature have to
carve out exceptions for particular denom nations or
particular doctrines by mking any conmunication

intended to be confidential - notwithstanding the
denom nation or status of the person receiving it -
confidential. W would infinitely prefer that, as

opposed to being in a position where sonebody said the
Presbyterian mght have to go down the street to the
Cat holic Church for confession.

The comentary to the Alaska Rules of Evidence
pronmul gated by the suprene court states that this
privilege - and it is a privilege - recognizes the
need for a private enclave for spiritual counseling,
which is not confined to those whose religion requires
confession, but extends to all who attenpt to |ead
righteous lives, with the aid and confort of their
religion and religious advisors.

We, for many, many years, have taken the position that
a conmunication nmde to a pastor or mnister -

whi chever term you prefer - is meant to be
confidential, and we will preserve the confidentiality
of that conmunication. The Al aska Suprene Court has
told us, in their rules, that we are obligated to do
Sso.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 6, 2003



Number 0304

MR SMTH referred to Plant v. State. He noted that in this
particul ar sexual abuse case, the person involved went to his
protestant mnister to discuss the problens of sexual abuse; the
suprenme court would not allow the mnister to testify in court
because the privilege belongs to the person who nakes the
communi cation. He continued:

When we're told that we mght have to go back 10 years
and report cases of sexual abuse that the clergy m ght
know of - not just the church, but the individual
clergy might suspect - we believe that this neans that
we would then have to go ahead and contact each and
every person who nmay have nmade a conmunication to a
pastor, and secure their <consent to report this,

because this bill, as | understand it, does not
attenpt to supersede the rules of the suprene court.
If it did attenpt to do so, | think that the problem
is, the bill would have to be redenom nated as a bil

to elimnate or change a procedure rule of the suprene
court, and would require a two-thirds vote in each

house. Whether or not this bill would stand, or
whether or not vyou'd have to put in a conmttee
substitute, | have no know edge. You'd have to

consult with your |egislative attorneys.

MR SMTH went on to say that a requirenent to report 10 years
back would create problens with insurance that nmay be voided in
respect to that. He reiterated that his church doesn't believe
it could do the required reporting without the consent of those
who nmade comunications, and has had a policy of absolute
abhorrence of sexual abuse and a no-second-chance policy for
many years.

Nunmber 0783

TED BOATSMAN, District Superintendent, Alaska District Council
of the Assenblies of God, noted that that the information
regarding HB 92 was received on short notice. He said he
bel i eves the | anguages reads in favor of sacranental confession,
which |eaves the protestant side "a little bit in confusion,"”
because protestants do not have sacranental confession in the
same manner as the Catholic Church. He said, "That |eaves us

to having to prove the intent of the confidential

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 6, 2003



communi cation that we have as mnisters.” He told the commttee
that he is ordai ned.

MR. BOATSMAN, regarding the | ook-back provision, said it is hard
to conprehend how sonmeone would decide if the intent of
comuni cation years ago was 1in confidence or was "a nere
comuni cation” during a premarital conference, for exanple. He
said having to prove the intent of confidence would be a real
struggle, especially when the suprenme court has ruled on the
side of the confessor.

Number 0839
KENT REDFEARN testified, saying he thinks the reason clergy

menbers are being considered as an addition to the other eight
categories [of those who report] is because they' ve always been

considered different from the other eight. He mai ntai ned that
clergy nenbers are different from childcare providers and
adm nistrative offices of institutions, for exanple. He

expressed concern about how this would be managed.
Nunber 0887

LAUREE HUGONIN, Alaska Network on Donestic Violence & Sexual
Assault (ANDVSA), said ANDVSA supports HB 92 and would also
support the addition of elders and disabled persons in the
| anguage of the bill, as was previously discussed. Regar di ng
negl ect, she opined that it would be [based upon] the comrunity
standard. She said a DHSS representative would probably be nore
know edgeable to speak to the issue, but added, "As a person
maybe who has a mddle or upper inconme, | wouldn't go into a
community that was in a lower inconme and immediately start
reporting people. That's not what neglect is.”

M5. HUGONIN said donestic-violence and sexual-assault workers
were already in statute as required reporters "before we gained
our privilege." She added, "But when we did gain the privilege,
in order to accomobdate our responsibility as required
reporters, they put an exception in. So that m ght be sonething
that you could consider, if that continues to be an area of
confusion or contention.”

Number 1031
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said his concern regarding the issue of

negl ect cones in part fromreports that indicate over 35 percent
of the children in protective custody in the Anchorage area are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 6, 2003



Al aska Native. He offered his perception that a nunber of those
reports are based on cultural perspective on what is neglect.
He told [Ms. Hugonin] that he is not sure that she is correct.
He said if the state has a definition of neglect, a clergy
menber who is under threat of a class B m sdenmeanor to report
negl ect may not be able to say, "Wll, this is just a general

cultural way these people live, and so that's not neglect.” He
asked [Ms. Hugonin] if she is saying there are factors other
than cultural differences explaining why these nunbers are high

M5. HUGONI N responded that she is not aware of those nunbers,
but reiterated that there is concern regarding the community

st andar d. She said, for exanple, it is "so you don't have
sonebody from outside a conmunity coming in and just saying,
"Well, obviously that's neglectful - the child hasn't brushed

his teeth three tines a day, and that's ny standard - anything
| ess than that is neglect'."”

M5. HUGONIN suggested everyone wants children who are in
dangerous situations or neglected to be brought to the attention
of sonebody who can provide resources to the famly to help them
out. She said she thinks the intention of requiring the report
of neglect is so that the famly is brought to the awareness of
the system that can provide sone support for them in order to
get the child in a safer environnent.

Number 1233
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered the foll ow ng statenent:

|"mafraid that when we go and all of a sudden make an
Al aska Statute, we are not saying "local comunity
nornms,"” we are saying that the clergy is going to be
responsi ble for reporting sonmething that is within the
Al aska Statute definition, and we are not saying
"conmunity normns." So, | appreciate your idea; |I'm
just not sure if it's correct or not. And if it's not
correct, then we are going to be placing the clergy in
an awful position of either being eligible for
class B msdeneanors a lot of times or, basically,
putting themin a very untenable position within sone
of the communities that they're to mnister to.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is not opposed to the section of
the bill dealing with sexual abuse, but has problens with the
[l ook-back] reporting requirenent in the bill because it is
specific to clergy and nobody else is required to do it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 6, 2003



Number 1354

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Smth and M. Block to take
part in future commttee hearings on HB 92.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said he hopes the issues discussed wll be
resol ved by working with the sponsor of the bill

Nunmber 1393

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that the problens of reporting - what
to report and when to report it - are not confined to one church
tradition, which he said is why he thinks there needs to be one
standard. He thanked nenbers for their cooperation.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 92 woul d be hel d over.

[ There are approximately four mnutes of blank tape preceding
HB 18 because the tape kept rolling, but not recording, while
the commttee took an at-ease.]

HB 18- PARENTAL LIABILITY FOR CH LD S DANVAGE

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the l|ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 18, "An Act relating to the liability of parents
and | egal guardians of m nors who destroy property.”

Nunber 1615

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS0110\D, Luckhaupt, 2/28/03, as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version D was before the
committee.

Nunmber 1647

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 18, explained that the purpose of Version D is to raise the
exi sting $10,000 cap to $20,000, a substantial increase. He
referred to previous testinony [at the February 20, 2003, House
State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting] that parents who adopt
hi gh-risk children would be less likely to adopt if there were
unlimted liability. He added, "Certainly, we want to encourage
adoptions as nmuch as possible.” He said the cap has been in
place since 1967 and was last raised in 1995 from $2,000 to
$10, 000.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 6, 2003



Number 1709

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER told the commttee that since the |ast
hearing on HB 18, [his office] had heard from the insurance
conpanies regarding their concern with unlimted liability and

parents' being tenpted to use their honeowners' insurance to
cover the cost of their children's [vandalisni. He said,
"Their concern is that, with unlimted liability, ... they would
have to raise the honeowners' insurance rates; however, if we

kept the cap on, they did not see a problem with it inpacting
honmeowners' insurance rates.”

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said [his office] also heard from Carol
Comeau, superintendent for the Anchorage School District, who
indicated she'd like to see an unlimted cap because she wants
to be able to recoup all expenses for each incident.
Representative Meyer noted that 90 percent of vandalism that
occurs is mnor, such as breaking wi ndows and graffiti, and the
[ proposed] $20,000 cap woul d cover those expenses. The [acts of
vandal i sn] over $100,000 are rare crimnal acts, he said. He
offered an exanple that sonetinmes four children could be
involved in vandalism in which case the school district could
[ possi bly] get $20,000 from each [set of] parents.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER told the commttee only five states don't
have a cap. He said his research showed that there is no proof
that not having a cap is a deterrent to vandalism Al nost al |
the other states have a cap; they range fromas |low as $2,000 to
California s $25,000 cap. A $20,000 cap woul d make Al aska's one

of the highest [in the country]. He described coming up wth
the [proposed] $20,000 cap as a "balance act."” The intent is
for school districts to be able to recover a substantial anount
for damages done. He concluded by saying, "W've been

trying to work with as many groups as we can that are involved
with this, and this is the balance that we've cone up with."

Nunber 1874
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said in the interim he'll be considering sone
mechani snms in a separate bill to deal with school vandalism

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that he has been working wth

Representative Meyer on this issue. He referred to a
del i nquency statute and AS 47.12.155; he said he has prepared an
amendnent that he wll offer in the House Judiciary Standing

Commttee, which he and Representative Holm are nenbers of.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 6, 2003



That anendnent would add, at the end, "Wen danmages are sought
in a civil action against a parent, both parents, or guardi an of
a mnor, under this subsection, the parent, parents, or guardian
shal |l disclose the existence of any insurance that nay provide
coverage for the action of the mnor."

Nunber 2001

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG posited that a civil action should be
intended to make the school district "or whatever it is" whole
agai n. He read part of subsection (c) of [AS 47.12.155], which
reads:

(c) If a court orders a mnor's parent or
guardian to participate in treatnent under (b) of this
section, the court also shall order the parent or
guardian to wuse any available insurance or another
resource to cover the treatnent, or to pay for the
treatment if other coverage is unavail able.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that deals with treatnment, but

requires the disclosure of insurance. He noted that that
statute doesn't have a cap on it. He said his intent was to
work with the sponsor to nake that also a cap, "like this.”" He

indicated a Colorado statute contains some good |anguage, and
mentioned sone other states' statutes that require the court to
order parents to undergo sone parental training to ensure that
the children are helped so that "this kind of behavior doesn't
repeat itself."” He concluded, "And it shouldn't be necessary to
do that in the context of a delinquency, but | think that it
m ght be sonething that we would consider in this, so that the
school district is protected in the future.™

Nunmber 2069

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report CSHB 18, Version 23-
LS0110\ D, Luckhaupt, 2/28/03, from conmttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, CSHB 18(STA) was reported from the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

The House State Affairs Standing Conmittee took an at-ease at
10:12 a.m in order to prepare for the overview. [ For the
overview by the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities, see the 10:15 a.m mnutes for this date.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 6, 2003



